STATE OF MINNESOTA
DISTRICT COURT

COUNTY OF RAMSEY
SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT

------------------------------------------------------

Barbara Shipp, Barbara Johnson, Joanne Taylor, Lynn Parkkila, Patricia Lamont, and Gary Thompson on behalf of themselves and all others similarly situated,


Plaintiffs,

v.

Messerli and Kramer, P.A., Derrick N. Weber, Jefferson C. Pappas, Jeffrey J. Cohen, and Matthew R. Smith,


Defendants.

------------------------------------------------------





Case Type:________________


Court File No.:_____________


CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

INTRODUCTION

1. Plaintiffs seek to represent a class of persons who, like themselves, have been victimized by defendants’ practice of seeking excessive and unearned attorneys fee awards in connection with obtaining default judgments on behalf of creditor clients.  Plaintiffs challenge defendants’ practice of obtaining default fee awards based on documentation that is misleading, insufficient, and which results in fee awards not authorized by Minnesota law.  Defendants’ actions violate Minnesota Rules of Practice 119.02 and 119.05, the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1692e and 1692f, and the Minnesota Uniform Deceptive Trade Practices Act, Minn. Stat. § 325D.44.

2. Plaintiffs seek declaratory relief and to enjoin defendants from further efforts to obtain attorneys fees judgments in default cases that do not comply with Minnesota law.  Plaintiffs also seek equitable relief directing defendants to correct past injuries to plaintiffs, or in the alternative their actual damages, and plaintiffs seek an award of their own costs and attorneys fees.

PARTIES
3. Plaintiffs are all Minnesota residents who have been sued by creditors in state courts throughout Minnesota.  The creditors in each of these cases is represented by Defendants Messerli and Kramer, P.A., Derrick Weber, Jefferson Pappas, Jeffrey Cohen, and Matthew Smith (hereinafter “Messerli”).  In each case against plaintiffs herein, plaintiffs defaulted and the creditors in those cases were awarded or may be awarded default judgments based on consumer transactions.  Defendant Messerli obtained or will seek to obtain judgments against plaintiffs for attorneys fees in these cases.

4. Defendant Messerli is a public association law firm with offices in Minneapolis, St. Paul, and Plymouth, Minnesota.  Defendant is engaged in the business of collection for others of accounts, bills, or other debts owed by consumers in Minnesota and across the country.  As a result, defendant is a debt collector for purposes of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (FDCPA), 15 U.S.C. § 1692, et seq.
5. Defendants Derrick N. Weber, Jefferson C. Pappas, Jeffrey J. Cohen, and Matthew R. Smith are lawyers and members of the Messerli firm.  All four lawyers specialize in debt collection work, are debt collectors pursuant to the FDCPA, and all regularly engage in the practices described in this complaint.

6.  Defendant Messerli promotes its “credit and collections” practice on its website as follows:

Messerli & Kramer is one of the largest collection law firms in the country.  We are affiliated with numerous national networks of collection attorneys who provide clients with quality legal representation nationwide.  Our team provides pre-legal and legal services for over 70,000 active files and over 100 national credit grantors.  We offer contingent fee, flat fee, hourly fee and blended hourly rates.  We are fully automated with legal collection software, EDI interface capabilities, remote auditing, electronic funds transfer and auto-dialer.

A copy of the web site language is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

7. According to Messerli’s website, of the more than ninety people on their credit and collections team, only five are attorneys.  Exhibit A.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS
8. Plaintiffs bring this action pursuant to Rules 23.01 and 23.02(b) and (c) of the Minnesota Rules of Civil Procedure, on behalf of themselves and the class defined as follows:  all persons with respect to whom defendants, on behalf of defendants’ clients, have commenced an action in Minnesota courts by serving class members with a summons and complaint based upon alleged debts arising out of consumer transactions, and where defendants obtained or will seek to obtain default judgments that include awards of attorneys fees based upon requests for fees filed after January 1, 2004, pursuant to Minnesota General Rules of Practice 119.05 (hereinafter “Rule 119”).

9. The class is so numerous that joinder of all members is impracticable.  The class is estimated to exceed 100 persons.

10. There are questions of law or fact common to the class, including but not limited to:

A. Whether defendant’s affidavits filed in conjunction with Rule 119 attorneys fees requests violate the affidavit requirements of Rule 119.02;

B. Whether defendants’ practices of obtaining attorneys fee awards in default collection cases in violation of Rules 119.02 and 119.05 violate the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act and the Minnesota Deceptive Trade Practices Statute; and

C. Whether defendants’ practice of sending plaintiffs form letters warning plaintiffs that the court may award fees in excess of fifteen percent if plaintiffs contest the request, violate the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act and the Minnesota Deceptive Trade Practices Act.

11. The claims of the named plaintiffs are typical of the claims of the class.  

12. The named plaintiffs will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the class.

13. The requirements of Minnesota Rule of Civil Procedure 23.02 have also been satisfied in that defendants have acted on grounds generally applicable to the class, thereby making appropriate final injunctive relief or corresponding declaratory relief with respect to the class as a whole.  Alternatively, questions of law and fact common to class members predominate over any questions affecting individual class members, and a class action is in this case superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of the controversy.  Thus, a class could be certified under either Rule 23.02(b) or Rule 23.02(c).

MINNESOTA PROCEDURE FOR AWARDING 

ATTORNEYS FEES IN DEFAULT JUDGMENT CASES

14. In 2003, the Minnesota Supreme Court adopted a new rule as part of the General Rules of Practice for District Courts in order to streamline the procedure for considering requests for attorneys fees in default judgment cases.  Rule 119.05.  Once a debtor is in default, counsel for a creditor may bring a motion before the Court for an award of fees, or pursuant to Rule 119.05(a), may obtain approval of the fee request administratively without a motion hearing if the fee request does not exceed fifteen percent of the principal balance owing as requested in the party’s pleadings, up to a maximum of $3000.  A defaulting party may request a hearing to challenge the fee request.  Rule 119.05(c).  The form notice that a hearing can be requested advises the defaulting party that contesting fees might result in either a higher or lower fee than that asked for.  Form 119.05.

15. Rule 119.05(d) provides that the Rule does not apply to proceedings subsequent to the entry of judgment.

16. Regardless of whether counsel for the creditor seeks a fee award through a motion hearing or through Rule 119 administrative approval, the fee request must comply with the affidavit requirements of Rule 119.02.

17. Rule 119.02 requires that the affidavit setting out the fee request must include a description of each item of work performed, the date upon which it was performed, the amount of time spent on each item of work, the identity of the lawyer or legal assistant performing the work, and the hourly rate sought for the work performed.  The affidavit must also include the normal hourly rate requested for each person for whom compensation is sought, a statement that the affiant has reviewed the work in progress or original time records, and that the work was actually performed for the benefit of the client and was necessary for the proper representation of the client.

18. In summary, the Rule requires that fee claims be based upon work actually performed, not estimates based on average cases.  The Rule may not be used to request attorneys fees for potential future work since that work has not actually been performed and could include work involving proceedings subsequent to the entry of judgment.

FACTS

Plaintiff Barbara Shipp

19. Plaintiff Barbara Shipp is a 76 year-old disabled woman who suffers from severe diabetes, heart problems and arthritis and who uses a walker.  She and her 77 year-old husband Lewis Shipp live in Washington County, are recipients of Medical Assistance, and rely on food shelves for adequate nourishment.  Mrs. Shipp had worked as a medical technician and Mr. Shipp as a service manager for a large automobile dealership until their retirements; but their income now is entirely from Social Security.  

20. Mr. and Mrs. Shipp purchased an automobile in 2001, financed by Ford Motor Credit Company.  The Shipps were not able to keep up the payments because of increased medical expenses after Lewis Shipp suffered three heart attacks and two strokes in 2003.  The Shipps voluntarily returned the automobile to the dealer, but were sued in Washington County District Court in 2003 by Ford Motor Credit Company, represented by defendant Messerli, for a deficiency.  The amount requested in the complaint was $8,946.48, plus $1,281.48 in attorneys fees.

21. Pursuant to Rule 119, defendant Messerli served and eventually filed on June 16, 2004, an affidavit, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B, purporting to justify its attorneys fees claim.

22. The affidavit filed by defendant Messerli did not attempt to document services actually performed on the case, but simply based its request upon the alleged average time that Messerli claimed it had expended based on other collection cases it had undertaken.  

23. In addition, defendant Messerli’s fee request and affidavit included 10 hours for attorneys fees it anticipated incurring in the future in an effort to collect the debt on behalf of its client.  In fact, defendant Messerli had no basis for asserting that it would need to perform additional future services to collect from Mrs. Shipp.  

24. Defendant Messerli obtained an attorneys fee award of $1,281.48 through a motion hearing at which Mrs. Shipp did not appear.

25. Plaintiff did not otherwise appear to defend the case and, on behalf of Ford Credit Motor Company, defendant Messerli obtained a default judgment on July 12, 2004 for $11,030.35, which included the attorneys fees award.

26. By submitting a fee request without an affidavit that complied with Rule 119.02 and serving it upon plaintiff Barbara Shipp and her husband, defendant Messerli engaged in conduct which was deceptive and misleading.

Plaintiff Barbara Johnson

27. Barbara Johnson is a 62 year-old disabled woman who suffers from severe asthma and osteoarthritis and has to use a walker.  She lives in South St. Paul and is a recipient of Social Security Disability Insurance and Medical Assistance.  Ms. Johnson was a truck driver for about 20 years.  Following that, she worked as a bookkeeper and truck stop cashier, working 52 hours a week.  

28. Ms. Johnson lost her ability to walk unaided and had to stop working in 2003.  As a result, she was unable to make the monthly payments on her automobile lease with Ford Motor Credit Company.  She contacted Ford and tried to negotiate a payment plan.  Ford would not negotiate, even though Ms. Johnson was only one or two payments in arrears.  Ms. Johnson subsequently called Ford several times and said she wanted to return the automobile.  It took Ford several months to actually come and get the car from her.  

29. About one month after her first conversation with Ford, Ms. Johnson received a letter from defendant Messerli stating that the law firm had been hired by Ford to collect the debt and asking her to call to make payment arrangements.  Ms. Johnson called the firm and talked with a Messerli debt collector who scolded her like a child.  

30. Ford Motor Credit Company, represented by defendant Messerli, sued Ms. Johnson in Ramsey County District Court in December 2003.  The amount requested in the complaint was $6,393.17, plus attorneys fees of $1,598.30.  

31. By a letter dated April 8, 2004, defendant Messerli served an affidavit, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit C, purporting to justify its attorneys fees claim.

32. The letter dated April 8, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit D, advised that the enclosed documents were defendant Messerli’s affidavit and “…the request for hearing to determine attorney’s fees award…”  It also warned as follows:  “… if you contest the fees requested by plaintiff’s attorney the Court may award the plaintiff’s attorney an amount in excess of the fifteen percent allowed by the applicable Rule 119.”  

33. The attorneys fees affidavit was filed by defendant Messerli on June 9, 2004.  It did not attempt to document services actually performed on the case, but simply based its request upon the alleged average time that Messerli claimed it had expended based on other collection cases it had undertaken.  

34. In addition, defendant Messerli’s fee request and affidavit included 10 hours for attorneys fees it anticipated incurring in the future in an effort to collect the debt on behalf of its client.  In fact, defendant Messerli had no basis for asserting that it would need to perform additional future services to collect from Ms. Johnson.  

35. Relying on Rule 119, defendant Messerli obtained an attorneys fees award of $958.97 through the administrative approval process.  

36. Plaintiff did not otherwise appear to defend the case and, on behalf of Ford Credit Motor Company, defendant Messerli obtained a default judgment on June 11, 2004, in the amount of $11,030.35, which included the attorneys fees award.  

37. By sending the letter dated April 8, 2004, and by submitting a fee request without an affidavit that complied with Rule 119.02 and serving it upon plaintiff Barbara Johnson, defendant Messerli engaged in conduct which was deceptive and misleading.

Plaintiff Joanne Taylor

38. Joanne Taylor is a 69 year-old woman who contracted severe Lyme Disease in  1989 and now suffers from disabling fibromyalgia and arthritis.  She lives in Hennepin County and is a recipient of Supplemental Security Income and Minnesota Supplemental Assistance.  Ms. Taylor worked as a part-time florist and began having financial problems shortly before her disabilities forced her to retire at age 63.  She worked with a credit counseling agency to make minimum payments on her credit card debts for about two years.  

39. Ms. Taylor began receiving dunning telephone calls and letters relating to a Discover credit card debt from defendant Messerli beginning in about 2002.  Upon Messerli’s request, she furnished Messerli before 2003 with at least one form indicating that her public assistance benefits were exempt from collection.  Yet, on June 9, 2003, Messerli served Ms. Taylor with a Summons and Complaint in Hennepin County District Court on behalf of Discover Bank.  The amount requested in the complaint was $3880.38, plus attorneys fees of $948.25.  

40. Between June 2003 and March 2004, while the Discover case was pending, defendant Messerli repeatedly demanded that Ms. Taylor send Messerli completed exemption claim forms, which she did with the assistance of a lawyer.  

41. By a letter dated February 13, 2004 defendant Messerli tried to serve Ms. Taylor with Rule 119 attorneys fees documents in the Discover lawsuit by addressing and mailing the documents to a secretary of the lawyer who had assisted Ms. Taylor.  Counsel immediately wrote to defendant Derrick Weber that he did not represent Ms. Taylor in the case and returned the documents.  Messerli never subsequently sent or served the documents on Ms. Taylor.  

42. The form letter accompanying the Rule 119 Affidavit was identical to Exhibit D and advised that the enclosed documents were defendant’s affidavit and “…the request for hearing to determine attorney’s fee award…”  It also warned as follows:  “… if you contest the fees requested by plaintiff’s attorney the Court may award the plaintiff’s attorney an amount in excess of the fifteen percent allowed by the applicable Rule 119.”   

43. Included in defendant Messerli’s Rule 119 documents, not served on Ms. Taylor as noted above but filed with the Court on May 3, 2004, was an affidavit identical to Exhibit C, purporting to justify its attorneys fees claim.  

44. The affidavit did not attempt to document services actually performed on the case, but simply based its request upon the alleged average time that defendant Messerli claimed it had expended based on other collection cases it had undertaken.  

45. In addition, defendant Messerli’s fee request and affidavit included 10 hours for attorneys fees it anticipated incurring in the future in an effort to collect the debt on behalf of its client.  In fact, Messerli had no basis for asserting that it would need to perform additional future services to collect from Ms. Taylor.  

46. Relying on Rule 119, defendant Messerli obtained an attorneys fees award of $568.95 through the administrative approval process.

47. Ms. Taylor did not appear to defend the case and, on behalf of Discover Bank, defendant Messerli obtained a default judgment on May 3, 2004 for $5,658.74, which included the attorneys fees award.

48. By sending the letter dated February 13, 2004, and by submitting a fee request without an affidavit that complied with Rule 119.02 and serving it upon plaintiff Joanne Taylor, defendant Messerli engaged in conduct which was deceptive and misleading.  

49. In addition, Ms. Taylor faces substantial risk she will again be subject to an unauthorized attorneys fees claim asserted by defendant Messerli.  Providian Bank, frequently represented by Messerli, is threatening legal action against Ms. Taylor to collect a debt.

Plaintiff Lynn Parkkila

50. Lynn Parkkila, formerly known as Lynn Parkkila Gonyou, is a 39 year-old woman who suffers from multiple severe gastric ulcers and disabling Muscular Sclerosis.  She lives in Scott County with her three minor children, the youngest of whom has been disabled from birth by congenital heart defects.  Ms. Parkkila now relies for income on Social Security Disability Insurance benefits.  

51. Ms. Parkkila is a registered nurse who worked for over 13 years in hospitals, clinics, and nursing homes until she became disabled in 2000.  

52. When Ms. Parkkila divorced in 2003, she discovered that her husband had acquired several credit cards on which Ms. Parkkila had been made a joint account holder.  He was required by the terms of the divorce to make all payments on the credit card debts, but he subsequently discharged his obligation to repay the debts in bankruptcy, leaving Ms. Parkkila subject to collection. 

53. Ms. Parkkila received an exemption claim form from defendant Messerli in April or May 2004.  She was also served separately by defendant Messerli with a Scott County District Court complaint on behalf of Discover Bank in April 2004.  The amount requested in the complaint was $3,904.27, plus attorneys fees of $508.01.  

54. Ms. Parkkila thought she could answer the April 2004 Summons and Complaint by completing the exemption claim form and delivering it to defendant Messerli, which she did.

55. By a letter dated June 4, 2004, and served on June 14, 2004, defendant Messerli served Ms. Parkkila with an affidavit in a form virtually identical to Exhibit C, purporting to justify its attorneys fees claim.

56. The letter dated June 4, 2004 was identical to Exhibit D, and advised that the enclosed documents were defendant Messerli’s affidavit and “…the request for hearing to determine attorney’s fee award…”  It also warned as follows:  “… if you contest the fees requested by plaintiff’s attorney the Court may award the plaintiff’s attorney an amount in excess of the fifteen percent allowed by the applicable Rule 119.”   
57. The affidavit filed by defendant Messerli did not attempt to document services actually performed on the case, but simply based its request upon the alleged average time that Messerli claimed it had expended based on other collection cases it had undertaken.

58. In addition, defendant Messerli’s fee request and affidavit  included 10 hours for attorneys fees it anticipated incurring in the future in an effort to collect the debt on behalf of its client.  In fact, Messerli had no basis for asserting that it would need to perform additional future services to collect from Ms. Parkkila.   

59. Defendant Messerli obtained a default judgment on behalf of Discover Bank for $5,086.80, which included an attorneys fees award of $509.43.

60. By sending the letter dated June 4, 2004, and by submitting a fee request without an affidavit that complied with Rule 119.02 and serving it upon plaintiff Lynn Parkkila, defendant Messerli engaged in conduct which was deceptive and misleading.  

Plaintiff Patricia Lamont
61. Patricia Lamont is a 53 year-old woman who is severely disabled by diabetes, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease, and Guillain-Barre Syndrome, and who has been confined to a wheel chair since 2001.  Her only income is from Supplemental Security Income and Minnesota Supplemental Assistance, and she receives county supportive services.  Ms. Lamont got into financial trouble in 2003 when she lost $742 a month in child support income.  She began using her Target credit card to purchase household goods and groceries.  

62. Target National Bank, represented by defendant Messerli, served Ms. Lamont with an Anoka County District Court complaint in November 2004.  The amount requested in the complaint was $4,009.15, plus attorneys fees of $882.01.  Ms Lamont has no defense to the credit card claim, has not filed an answer, and is currently in default.  

63. By letter dated December 9, 2004, Messerli served upon Ms. Lamont, an affidavit in a form virtually identical to Exhibit C, purporting to justify its attorneys fees claim. 

64. The letter dated December 9, 2004, was identical to Exhibit D, and advised that the enclosed documents were defendant Messerli’s affidavit and “…the request for hearing to determine attorney’s fee award…”  It also warned as follows:  “… if you contest the fees requested by plaintiff’s attorney the Court may award the plaintiff’s attorney an amount in excess of the fifteen percent allowed by the applicable Rule 119.”  
65. The letter was received by Ms. Lamont on December 13 or 14, 2004, and by it’s terms she must respond within 20 days of receipt.  The affidavit filed by defendant Messerli does not attempt to document services actually performed on the case, but simply bases its request upon the alleged average time that Messerli claims it has expended based on other collection cases it had undertaken.

66. In addition, defendant Messerli’s fee request and affidavit includes 10 hours for attorneys fees it anticipated incurring in the future in an effort to collect the debt on behalf of its client.  In fact, Messerli has no basis for asserting that it would need to perform additional future services to collect from Ms. Lamont.  

67. By sending the letter dated December 9, 2004, and by submitting a fee request without an affidavit that complied with Rule 119.02 and serving it upon plaintiff Patricia Lamont, defendant Messerli engaged in conduct which was deceptive and misleading.  

Plaintiff Gary Thompson
68. Plaintiff Gary Thompson is a 72 year-old disabled man who suffers from severe depression and the effects of early Parkinson’s Disease.  Mr. Thompson’s only income is from a Social Security pension.  Prior to retirement, he had worked for 46 years for one of the Twin Cities’ largest nurseries, serving as head grower for 16 years.  

69. In July or August 2004, Target National Bank/Marshall Fields, represented by defendant Messerli, sued Mr. Thompson in Hennepin County District Court regarding a credit card debt.  The amount requested in the complaint was $693.20, plus attorneys fees of $250.  

70. Mr. Thompson has no defense to the credit card claim, has not filed an answer, and is currently in default.

71. Unless this Court intervenes to enjoin defendant Messerli from doing so, Messerli will almost certainly assert a fee claim pursuant to Minnesota General Practice Rule 119 in the near future with the same legal defects otherwise described herein.

The Class as a Whole
72. As a matter of pattern and practice, defendant Messerli regularly asserts claims for attorneys fees in connection with default judgments by serving debtors with one of two versions of a boilerplate affidavit in support of attorneys fees, neither of which vary substantially from one default proceeding to the next, along with a Notice and Request for Hearing form.  These documents are accompanied by a form cover letter.  Defendant Messerli submits their request for fees and the supporting affidavit to the court for approval.

73. The boilerplate affidavits estimate the “average time spent on a typical collection matter” and the time that will be spent collecting on judgments.  Messerli’s affidavits are based upon average time performed on other cases, as opposed to time actually spent on the case at issue.  In addition, Messerli regularly and consistently includes requests for an award of fees based on anticipated future work to be performed.  By asserting an entitlement to attorneys fees without submitting an affidavit that complies with Rule 119.02 and also by seeking fees not yet earned and for work that may include proceedings subsequent to the entry of judgment, Messerli’s actions are deceptive and confusing with respect to the class of debtors who receive Messerli’s attorneys fees requests.

74. The Request for Hearing form served on debtors states that if a hearing is requested, “the Court may award an amount larger or smaller than the amount indicated above.”  Exhibit E.  In contrast to the form, Messerli’s cover letter warns debtors that if they contest the fees requested by Messerli, the court may award Messerli “an amount in excess of the fifteen percent allowed by Rule 119.”  Exhibit D.

75. The cover letter leads debtors to believe that the documents enclosed with the letter include a request by defendant Messerli for a hearing to determine attorneys fees, instead of a form that debtors may use to request hearings to contest those fees.  The letter also fails to inform debtors that the Court may award lower fees if they contest the fees requested.

76. The cover letter conflicts with the information in the Request for Hearing form required by Rule 119.05 and leads debtors to believe that contesting the fees may result only in an award greater than the amount requested.  

77. The cover letter discourages debtors from exercising their right to request a hearing to contest the fees requested.

78. After judgment is entered, defendant Messerli’s practice is to try to collect by garnishing debtors’ bank accounts and/or wages or by levying against other property. 

79. Defendant Messerli has repeatedly and willfully engaged in the practices described above, knowing them to be deceptive and misleading.

80. Unless the Court orders declaratory and injunctive relief, defendant Messerli will continue to obtain default attorneys fees awards which do not comply with Rule 119, causing irreparable harm to the plaintiff class.  Although class members can theoretically challenge Messerli’s practices by requesting a hearing pursuant to Rule 119.05(c), defaulting parties almost never request such hearings, in part for the following reasons: Exhibits B and C lead debtors to believe that Messerli actually worked all hours alleged in the affidavit on their case and must be entitled to the fees Messerli seeks, Exhibit D leads debtors to believe that Messerli will be awarded greater fees if fees are contested; and/or the debtor-defendants lack access to attorneys to contest the fee requests.

CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

FIRST CLAIM

Rule 119 Affidavit as Fair Debt Collection Practices Act Violation,

False or Misleading Representations

81. Defendant Messerli served debtors who are plaintiffs herein with attorneys fees requests in violation of Minnesota General Rule of Practice 119 in that the fees requested are not based upon work actually performed on the debtors’ cases.  Defendants also seek fees for potential future work to be performed which is not authorized by the rule.

82. In serving debtors with fee requests which assert an entitlement to fees not permitted by Rule 119, defendant Messerli uses false, deceptive and misleading representations in connection with the collection of debts, in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692e.

83. In particular, defendant Messerli falsely represents the character, amount, and legal status of debts, namely attorneys fees, in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692e(2)(A).

84. In so doing, defendant Messerli also falsely represents the compensation they may lawfully receive for the collection of plaintiffs’ debts, in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692e(2)(B).

SECOND CLAIM

Rule 119 Affidavit as Fair Debt Collection Practices Act Violation

Unfair Practices

85. Defendant Messerli served debtors who are plaintiffs herein with attorneys fees requests in violation of Minnesota General Rule of Practice 119, in that said applications are not based upon work actually performed on the debtors’ cases.  Defendants also seek fees for potential future work to be performed which is not authorized by the rule.

86. In serving debtors with fee applications which assert an entitlement to fees not permitted by Rule 119, defendant Messerli uses unfair or unconscionable means to collect or attempt to collect debts, in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692f.

87. In particular, defendant Messerli  seeks to obtain and collect attorneys fees based on the collection of debts owed by debtors, to an extent not permitted by law, in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692f(1).

THIRD CLAIM

Rule 119 Affidavit as Minnesota Deceptive Trade Practices Act Violation

88. Defendant Messerli served debtors who are plaintiffs herein with attorneys fees applications in violation of Minnesota General Rule of Practice 119 in that said applications are not based upon work actually performed on the debtors’ cases.  Defendants also seek fees for potential future work to be performed which is not authorized by the rule.

89. By serving debtors with fee applications which assert an entitlement to fees not permitted by Rule 119, defendant Messerli engages in deceptive trade practices when, in the course of business, Messerli engages in conduct creating a likelihood of confusion or of misunderstanding, in violation of Minnesota Statute § 325D.44, subd.1(13).

FOURTH CLAIM

Rule 119 Cover Letter as Fair Debt Collection Practices Act Violation

False or Misleading Representations

90. Defendant Messerli sent debtors who are plaintiffs herein cover letters accompanying the Rule 119 affidavit that lead debtors to believe that the effect of contesting a request for attorneys fees may only result in the court awarding a greater amount of fees than defendant Messerli is requesting.

91. In sending debtor-defendants the letters, defendant Messerli uses false, deceptive and misleading representations in connection with the collection of debts, in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692e.

FIFTH CLAIM

Rule 119 Cover Letter as Fair Debt Collection Practices Act Violation 

Unfair Practices

92. Defendant Messerli sent debtors who are plaintiffs herein cover letters accompanying the Rule 119 affidavit that lead debtors to believe that the effect of contesting a request for attorneys fees may only result in the court awarding a greater amount of fees than defendant Messerli is requesting.

93. By sending the cover letters to debtors and thereby misleading them as to the consequence of requesting  hearings, defendant Messerli  uses unfair or unconscionable means to collect or attempt to collect debts, in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692f.

SIXTH CLAIM

Rule 119 Cover Letter as Minnesota Deceptive Trade Practices Act Violation

94. Defendant Messerli sent debtor-defendants who are plaintiffs herein cover letters accompanying the Rule 119 affidavit that lead debtors to believe that the effect of contesting a request for attorneys fees may only result in the court awarding a greater amount of fees than defendant Messerli is requesting.  

95. By sending cover letters to debtors that mislead them as to the consequences of requesting hearings, defendant Messerli  engages in deceptive trade practices when, in the course of business, Messerli engages in conduct creating a likelihood of confusion or misunderstanding, in violation of Minnesota Statute § 325D.44, subd. 1(13).  

SEVENTH CLAIM

Unjust Enrichment

96. By collecting unauthorized attorneys fees in violation of Rule 119, defendant Messerli has received a benefit of money.

97. By using a deceptive Rule 119 cover letter to discourage defendant-debtors from contesting their fee claims, defendant Messerli has received a benefit of money.  

98. Messerli has knowingly accepted such benefits.  

99. Messerli has retained such monetary benefits under circumstances that would make it inequitable and an unjust enrichment for Messerli to retain those benefits. 

RELIEF REQUESTED

100. Plaintiffs request the following relief:

A. That the Court authorize this action to proceed as a class action pursuant to Rule 23 of the Minnesota Rules of Civil Procedure;

B. That this Court temporarily and permanently enjoin defendants, pursuant to Minnesota Statute § 325D.45, from filing requests for attorneys fees in default judgment actions pursuant to Minnesota Rule 119, unless such requests are based on work actually performed as to that case, and are limited just to work performed and not for future work anticipated to be performed; 

C. That this Court temporarily enjoin defendants from further pursuing attorneys fees claims against plaintiffs Patricia Lamont and Gary Thompson until such time as this Court can rule upon plaintiffs’ Motion for Class Certification;

D. That this Court enter a declaratory judgment pursuant to Minnesota Statute Chapter 555, adjudicating and declaring that defendants’ actions violate plaintiffs’ rights as set out above;

E. That this Court grant equitable relief pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 325D.45 in the form of restitution to class members for payments made on illegal attorneys fees claims, and an Order directing defendants to file partial satisfactions of judgment to cover such claims, or such other equitable relief as will make the plaintiff class whole;

F. That, as an alternative to the relief sought in subparagraph E above, this Court grant damages to each member of the plaintiff class equal to that portion of their default judgments representing the attorneys fees awards, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k;

G. That  this Court grant statutory damages to plaintiff class for plaintiffs’ fourth, fifth, and sixth claims for relief pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k; 

H. That this Court grant statutory damages to named plaintiffs’ Barbara Johnson, Barbara Taylor, Lynn Parkkila, and Patricia Lamont for plaintiffs’ fourth, fifth, and sixth claims for relief pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k;

I. That this Court award judgment against defendant Messerli for disgorgement of all profits derived due to common law unjust enrichment.

J. That this Court award to plaintiffs their reasonable costs and disbursements herein, including reasonable attorneys fees, pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 325D.45 and 15 U.S.C. § 1692k;

K. That this Court grant such other and further relief as this Court finds just and equitable.
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